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ITEM 1. Financial Statements

PART I
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
TELADOC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET S
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
March 31,
2016

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $2,589 and $1,812, respectively
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accrued compensation
Long-term bank and other debt-current portion
Total current liabilities
Other liabilities
Deferred taxes
Long term bank and other debt, net
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized as of March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015; 38,707,479 shares and 38,524,922 shares issued and outstanding as of
March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$

$
$

1

50,193
69,522
13,819
2,639
136,173
6,087
56,342
14,588
293
213,483

$

1,078
9,485
3,135
1,250
14,948
7,128
1,347
24,957

$

39
310,861
(145,814)
17
165,103
$ 213,483

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

December 31,
2015

$

55,066
82,282
12,134
2,096
151,578
6,259
56,342
15,265
293
229,737
2,213
8,197
6,326
1,250
17,986
6,775
1,185
25,227

38
309,078
(130,510)
(42)
178,564
$ 229,737
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TELADOC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATION S
(In thousands, except share and per share data, unaudited)
Quarters Ended March 31,
2016
2015

Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Advertising and marketing
Sales
Technology and development
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Loss from operations
Interest income (expense), net
Net loss before taxes
Income tax (provision) benefit
Net loss
Net loss per share, basic and diluted

$

$
$

Weighted-average shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share

26,888
7,943
18,945
8,050
5,270
5,225
13,607
1,508
(14,715)
(427)
(15,142)
(162)
(15,304)
(0.40)
38,584,345

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
2

$

$
$

16,488
5,281
11,207
4,341
3,682
2,906
11,968
903
(12,593)
(568)
(13,161)
458
(12,703)
(5.87)
2,162,413
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TELADOC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
(In thousands, unaudited)
Quarters Ended March 31,
2016
2015

Net loss
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Net change in unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

$

Comprehensive loss

$

(15,304)

$

59
59

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements

3

(15,245)

(12,703)
—
—

$

(12,703)
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TELADOC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data, unaudited)
Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Common Stock
Shares
Amount

Balance as of December 31, 2015
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Net loss
Balance as of March 31, 2016

38,524,922
182,557
—
—
—
38,707,479

$

$

38
1
—
—
—
39

$

$

309,078
495
1,288
—
—
310,861

Accumulated
Deficit

$

$

(130,510)
—
—
—
(15,304)
(145,814)

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

4

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

$

$

(42)
—
—
59
—
17

Total
Stockholders’
Equity

$

$

178,564
496
1,288
59
(15,304)
165,103
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TELADOC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW S
(In thousands, unaudited)

Cash flows used in operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Stock-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Accretion of interest
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Due from officer
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accrued compensation
Other liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of internal software
Purchase of marketable securities
Proceeds from the liquidation/maturity of marketable securities
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Repayment of bank loan
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period
Interest paid

Quarters Ended March 31,
2016
2015

$

$

1,508
777
1,288
162
129

$
$

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

5

(15,304)

(12,703)
903
451
811
(458)
39

(2,462)
—
(543)
—
(1,135)
1,288
(3,191)
353
(17,130)

(2,281)
253
(1,593)
12
1,357
3,475
(670)
68
(10,336)

(275)
(385)
(37,122)
49,856
—
12,074

(365)
(434)
—
—
(3,269)
(4,068)

496
(313)
183
(4,873)
55,066
50,193
604

28
—
28
(14,376)
46,436
32,060
424

$
$
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TELADOC, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Organization and Description of Business
Teladoc, Inc. was incorporated in the State of Texas in June 2002 and changed its state of incorporation to the State of
Delaware in October 2008. Unless the context otherwise requires, Teladoc, Inc., together with its subsidiaries, is referred to herein
as “Teladoc” or the “Company”. The Company’s principal executive offices are located in Purchase, New York and Dallas,
Texas. Teladoc is the nation’s largest telehealth company.
On July 7, 2015, Teladoc closed on its initial public offering (the “IPO”) in which the Company issued and sold
9,487,500 shares of common stock, including the exercise of an underwriter option to purchase additional shares, at an issuance
price of $19.00 per share. The Company received net proceeds of $163.1 million after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions of $12.6 million as well as other offering expenses of $4.5 million. On July 7, 2015, all of the Company’s thenoutstanding convertible preferred stock converted into an aggregate of 25.5 million shares of common stock and all of the
Company’s redeemable common stock converted into 113,294 shares of common stock.
The Company completed the acquisitions of Compile, Inc. d/b/a BetterHelp (“BetterHelp”) and Stat Health Services Inc.
(“StatDoc”) in 2015, two companies engaged in telehealth activities similar to those of Teladoc. Additionally in 2015, the
Company acquired certain assets from Gateway to Provider Access, Inc. (“Gateway”) which was engaged in the marketing,
selling and administering the Company’s services through other third parties. Upon the effective date of each respective merger,
each entity merged with and into Teladoc.
Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) regarding interim financial reporting. In the opinion of the Company’s management, the accompanying
unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals and adjustments)
necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company at the dates and for the
periods indicated. The interim results for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 are not necessarily indicative of results for the full
2016 fiscal year or any other future interim periods. As such, the information included in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in the Company’s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.
The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the results of Teladoc, two professional associations and twenty
one professional corporations and a service corporation: Teladoc Physicians, P.A.; Teladoc Behavioral Health, P.A., Teladoc
Physicians, P.C. formed and operated in Alaska; Teladoc Physicians, P.C. formed and operated in California; Teladoc Physicians,
P.C. formed and operated in Colorado; Teladoc Physicians, P.C. formed and operated in Michigan; Teladoc Physicians, P.C.
formed and operated in New Jersey; Teladoc Physicians, P.C. formed and operated in New York; Teladoc Physicians, P.C.
formed and operated in North Carolina; Teladoc Behavioral Health, P.C. formed and operated in Alaska; Teladoc Behavioral
Health Alabama, P.C. formed and operated in Alabama; Teladoc Behavioral Health California, P.C. formed and operated in
California; Teladoc Behavioral Health Colorado, P.C. formed and operated in Colorado; Teladoc Behavioral Health Illinois, P.C.
formed and operated in Illinois; Teladoc Behavioral Health Louisiana, P.C. formed and operated in Louisiana; Teladoc
Behavioral Health Massachusetts, P.C. formed and operated in Massachusetts; Teladoc Behavioral Health Michigan, P.C. formed
and operated in Michigan; Teladoc Behavioral Health Nebraska, P.C. formed and operated in Nebraska; Teladoc Behavioral
Health New Jersey, P.C. formed and operated in New Jersey; Consult Psychiatry, P.C. formed and operated in New York;
Teladoc Behavioral Health North Carolina, P.C. formed and operated in North Carolina; Teladoc Behavioral Health Rhode
Island, P.C. formed and operated in Rhode Island; Teladoc Behavioral Health Virginia, P.C. formed and operated in Virginia; and
Teladoc Behavioral Health Wisconsin, S.C. formed and operated in Wisconsin (collectively, the “Association”).
Teladoc Physicians, P.A. is party to several agreements by and among it and the professional corporations noted above
pursuant to which each professional corporation provides services to Teladoc Physicians, P.A. Each professional
6
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TELADOC, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
corporation is established pursuant to the requirements of its respective domestic jurisdiction governing the corporate practice of
medicine.
The Company holds a variable interest in the Association which contracts with physicians and other health professionals
in order to provide services to Teladoc. The Association is considered a variable interest entity (“VIE”) since it does not have
sufficient equity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support. An enterprise having a controlling
financial interest in a VIE, must consolidate the VIE if it has both power and benefits—that is, it has (1) the power to direct the
activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance (power) and (2) the obligation to absorb losses
of the VIE that potentially could be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that potentially could be
significant to the VIE (benefits). The Company has the power and rights to control all activities of the Association and funds and
absorbs all losses of the VIE.
Total revenue and net loss for the VIE were $6.1 million and $(1.7) million, respectively, for the quarter ended March
31, 2016 and $3.3 million and $(2.4) million, respectively, for the quarter ended March 31, 2015. The VIE’s total assets
were $3.4 million and $2.4 million at March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. Total liabilities for the VIE
were $21.4 million and $18.7 million at March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The VIE’s total stockholders’
deficit was $18.0 million and $16.4 million at March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.
There have been no changes to the significant accounting policies described in the Form 10-K that have had a material
impac t on the consolidated financial statements and related notes.
Business Combinations
The Company accounts for its business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred and liabilities assumed by the
Company to the sellers and equity instruments issued. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired or assumed are measured separately at their fair values as of the acquisition
date. The excess of (i) the total costs of acquisition over (ii) the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree is recorded
as goodwill.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company
bases its estimates on historical experience, current business factors, and various other assumptions that the Company believes are
necessary to consider to form a basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities, the recorded
amounts of revenue and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company is subject to uncertainties
such as the impact of future events, economic and political factors, and changes in the Company’s business environment;
therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates. Accordingly, the accounting estimates used in the preparation of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements will change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional
information is obtained and as the Company’s operating environment evolves.
Changes in estimates are made when circumstances warrant. Such changes in estimates and refinements in estimation
methodologies are reflected in reported results of operations; if material, the effects of changes in estimates are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. Significant estimates and assumptions by management affect the allowance for
doubtful accounts, the carrying value of long ‑lived assets (including goodwill and intangible assets), the carrying value,
capitalization and amortization of software development costs, client performance guarantees, the calculation of a contingent
liability in connection with an earn ‑out, the provision for income taxes and related deferred tax accounts, certain accrued
liabilities, revenue recognition, contingencies, litigation and related legal accruals and the value attributed to employee stock
options and other stock ‑based awards.
7
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TELADOC, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Net Loss Per Share
Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted ‑average number of shares of common
stock of the Company outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by giving effect to all potential shares
of common stock of the Company, including the preferred stock (in 2015) and outstanding stock options and warrants, to the
extent dilutive. Basic and diluted net loss per share was the same for each period presented as the inclusion of all potential shares
of common stock of the Company outstanding would have been anti ‑dilutive.
Segment Information
The Company’s chief operating decision maker, its Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), reviews the financial information
presented on a consolidated basis for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating its financial performance. Accordingly, the
Company has determined that it operates in a single reportable segment—health services.
Revenue Recognition
The Company offers two types of subscription access revenue contracts: (i) contracts that provide for a fixed monthly
charge for access and unlimited visits per Member and (ii) contracts that provide for a fixed monthly charge for access and a
contractually defined cost for each visit. Any visit fee revenue that is not included in the subscription access revenue is
recognized when the service has been provided to the Member.
The Company recognizes a substantial portion of its revenue from contracts that provide employers and health plans
(“Clients”) with subscription access to the Company’s network of physicians and other healthcare professionals (“Providers”) on
a subscription basis for a fixed monthly fee which entitles the Client’s employees and their beneficiaries (“Members”) to
unlimited consultations (“visits”). The contracts are generally for a one-year term and have an automatic renewal feature for
additional years.
The Company commences revenue recognition for the subscription access service on the date that the services are made
available to the Client and its Members, which is considered the implementation date, provided all of the following criteria are
met:
·

there is an executed subscription agreement;

·

the Member has access to the service;

·

collection of the fees is reasonably assured; and

·

the amount of fees to be paid by the Client and Member is fixed and determinable.

Subscription Access Revenue
Subscription access revenue recognition commences on the date that the Company’s services are made available to the
Client, which is considered the implementation date, provided all of the other criteria described above are met. Revenue is
recognized over the term of the Client contract and is based on the terms in the Client contracts, which can provide for a variable
periodic fee based upon the actual number of Members.
Revenue From Visit Fees
Revenue from visits is comprised of all revenue that is earned in connection with the completion of a visit. The
Company recognizes revenue as the visits are completed.
The Company’s contracts do not generally contain refund provisions for fees earned related to services performed.
However, certain of the Company’s contracts include client performance guarantees that are based upon minimum Member
utilization and guarantees by the Company for specific service level performance of the Company’s services. If client
performance guarantees are not being realized, the Company deducts from revenue an estimate of the
8
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TELADOC, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amount that will be due at the end of the respective client’s contractual period. The Company issued credits amounting to
approximately $0.1 million and $0.1 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Cost of Revenue
Cost of revenue primarily consists of fees paid to the Providers, costs incurred in connection with the Company’s
Provider network operations, which include employee-related expenses (including salaries and benefits) as well as costs related to
the Company’s call center and medical malpractice insurance.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of purchase. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents generally consist of investments in money market funds. Cash and
cash equivalents are stated at fair value.
Short-Term Investments
The Company holds short-term investments in marketable securities primarily consisting of corporate bonds,
commercial paper, U.S treasuries and asset backed securities with maturities of less than one year. These short-term investments
are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains or losses recorded as accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Realized gains or losses are recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations upon disposition of the securities.
months.

As of March 31, 2016, there were no short-term investments that had been in a continuous loss position for more than 12

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Realized gains or losses are included in interest income (expense), net in
the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. There were no realized gains or losses for the three months ended March
31, 2016 and 2015.
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount, net of allowances for doubtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on the Company’s assessment of the collectability of accounts. The Company regularly reviews the
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts by considering the age of each outstanding invoice and the collection history of
each customer to determine whether a specific allowance is appropriate. Accounts receivable deemed uncollectable are charged
against the allowance for doubtful accounts when identified.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is recorded using the straight ‑line
method over the estimated useful lives of the respective asset as follows:
Computer equipment
Furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements

3 years
5 years
Shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the improvements

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and improvements are capitalized. When assets are retired
or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is
reflected in the consolidated statement of operations in the period realized.
9
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TELADOC, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Internal ‑Use Software
Internal ‑use software is included in intangible assets and is amortized on a straight ‑line basis over 3 years. For
development costs related to software development tools that enable the Company’s Members and Providers to interact, the
Company capitalizes costs incurred during the application development stage. Costs related to minor upgrades, minor
enhancements and maintenance activities are expensed as incurred.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible and intangible assets acquired
in a business combination. Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment annually on October 1 or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired. The Company’s impairment tests are based on a
single operating segment and reporting unit structure. The goodwill impairment test involves a two ‑ step process. The first step
involves comparing the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. The fair value of the
reporting unit is estimated using a discounted cash flows analysis. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value,
the second step of the test is performed by comparing the carrying value of the goodwill in the reporting unit to its implied fair
value. An impairment charge is recognized for the excess of the carrying value of goodwill over its implied fair value.
The Company’s annual goodwill impairment test resulted in no impairment charges in any of the periods presented in
the consolidated financial statements.
Other intangible assets resulted from business acquisitions and include client relationships, non ‑compete agreements,
software and trademarks. Client relationships are amortized over a period of 2 to 10 years, in relation to expected future cash
flows. Non ‑compete agreements are amortized over a period of 3 to 5 years using the straight ‑line method, software is amortized
over a period of 5 years using the straight-line method and trademarks are amortized over a period of 3 years using the straight
‑line method.
Stock ‑Based Compensation
Stock ‑based compensation is measured based on the grant date fair value of the awards and recognized on a straight
‑line basis over the period during which the employee is required to perform services in exchange for the award (generally the
vesting period of the award). The Company estimates the fair value of employee stock options using the Black ‑Scholes option
‑pricing model.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial reporting carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and tax credit and net operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse.
The Company assesses the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and a
valuation allowance is established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts more likely than not expected to
be realized.
The Company recognizes and measures uncertain tax positions using a two ‑ step approach. The first step is to evaluate
the tax position taken or expected to be taken by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely
than not that the tax position will be sustained in an audit, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. The
second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate
settlement. Significant judgment is required to evaluate uncertain tax positions. The Company evaluates its uncertain tax positions
on a regular basis. Its evaluations are based on a number of factors, including changes in facts and circumstances, changes in tax
law, correspondence with tax authorities during the course of audit
10
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TELADOC, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
and effective settlement of audit issues. The Company's policy is to include interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax
benefits as a component of interest income (expense), net in the unaudited consolidated financial statements.
Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 201409, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), to achieve a consistent application of revenue recognition within the
U.S., resulting in a single revenue model to be applied by reporting companies under GAAP. Under the new model, recognition of
revenue occurs when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In addition, the revised guidance requires that
reporting companies disclose the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers. The revised guidance is effective for the Company beginning in the quarter ending March 31, 2018; early adoption is
allowed. The revised guidance is required to be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying it recognized at the date of initial application. We are currently evaluating the
transition method that will be elected and the potential effect the revised guidance will have on our consolidated financial
statements.
In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-12, Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award
Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period , requiring that a performance target
that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. The
amendments in this guidance are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2015. The adoption of this guidance had no impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations for the
quarter ended March 31, 2016.
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements—Going Concern . This guidance
addresses management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. Management’s evaluation should be based on relevant conditions and
events that are known and reasonably knowable at the date that the financial statements are issued. ASU 2014-15 is effective for
interim or annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact
of the adoption of this standard on our consolidated financial statements.
In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the
Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in
the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The revised
guidance was effective for the Company beginning in the quarter ending March 31, 2016 and is required to be applied
retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted. We have early adopted ASU 2015-03 as of December 31, 2015 which resulted in
$0.1 million balance sheet reclassification as of December 31, 2015.
In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-16 , Business Combinations - Simplifying the Accounting for
Measurement-Period Adjustments (Topic 805). ASU 2015-16 requires that an acquirer recognize adjustments to provisional
amounts that are identified during the measurement period in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are
determined. ASU 2015-16 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015, with early adoption
permitted, and is to be applied on a prospective basis. For the quarter ended March 31, 2016, there was no impact of the adoption
of this standard on our consolidated financial statements.
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of
Deferred Taxes . ASU 2015-17 simplifies the presentation of deferred income taxes by eliminating the separate classification of
deferred income tax liabilities and assets into current and noncurrent amounts in the consolidated balance sheet. The amendments
in the update require that all deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent
11
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in the consolidated balance sheet. The amendments in this update are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2016, and interim periods therein and may be applied either prospectively or retrospectively to all periods presented. Early
adoption is permitted. We have early adopted this standard in the fourth quarter of 2015 on a retrospective basis. Prior periods
have been retrospectively adjusted. As a result of the adoption of ASU 2015-17, we made a $12,000 reclassification between
current deferred tax assets and noncurrent deferred tax liabilities in the 2014 balance sheet.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) . ASU 2016-02 related to leases that outlines a
comprehensive lease accounting model and supersedes the current lease guidance. The new guidance requires lessees to recognize
lease liabilities and corresponding right-of-use assets for all leases with lease terms of greater than 12 months. It also changes the
definition of a lease and expands the disclosure requirements of lease arrangements. The new guidance must be adopted using the
modified retrospective approach and will be effective for the Company starting in the first quarter of fiscal 2019. Early adoption
is permitted. We are currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard on our consolidated
financial statements .
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to
Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. ASU 2016-09 changes the accounting for share-based payments. Under the new
guidance, excess tax benefits associated with share-based payment awards will be recognized in the income statement when the
awards vest or settle, rather than in stockholders’ equity. In addition, it will increase the number of shares an employer can
withhold to cover income taxes on share-based payment awards and still qualify for the exemption to liability classification. The
new guidance will be effective for the Company starting in the first quarter of fiscal 2018. Early adoption is permitted in any
annual or interim period. We are currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard on our
consolidated financial statements.
Note 3. Business Acquisitions
On July 31, 2015, the Company acquired certain assets from Gateway for $1.5 million, subject to post-closing working
capital adjustments as defined in the purchase agreement. Gateway is engaged in the marketing, selling and administering the
Company’s services through other third parties and as a result, the acquisition price in excess of the net assets acquired, which
were less than $0.1 million, was allocated to client relationships. The acquisition transaction costs were less than $0.1 million.
The acquisition was considered an asset acquisition for tax purposes.
On June 17, 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of StatDoc through a merger in which StatDoc became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The aggregate merger consideration paid by the Company in connection with the
acquisition was $30.1 million, which was comprised of $13.3 million of cash and $16.8 million of the Company’s common stock
(or 1,051,033 shares), subject to post-closing working capital adjustments as defined in the Agreement and Plan of Merger
governing the acquisition. During the quarter ended September 30, 2015, the post-closing working capital adjustment was
finalized favorably to the Company in the amount of less than $0.1 million. Fair value of the common stock was determined
based on market data from similar healthcare enterprises. StatDoc is a telemedicine provider, focused on managed care, health
system and self-insured clients. The acquisition was considered a stock acquisition for tax purposes and as such, the goodwill
resulting from this acquisition is not tax deductible. The total transaction costs of the acquisition were $0.3 million.
On January 23, 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of BetterHelp, through a merger in which BetterHelp
became a wholly ‑owned subsidiary of the Company. The consideration paid by the Company in connection with this acquisition
consisted of (i) $3.3 million net of cash acquired and (ii) earn ‑out payments equal to a percentage of the annual net revenue of
the BetterHelp business for four years following closing. The Company computed the value of these future payments from
internally produced revenue projections and recorded a contingent liability in the amount of $2.4 million which is considered as
additional purchase consideration. The Company also issued an unsecured, subordinated promissory note in the amount of
$1.0 million, with all principal and interest at a rate of 5% per annum being payable on the third anniversary of the closing to the
selling shareholder and another executive of BetterHelp. If the employment of the promissory note holders is terminated, then
they forfeit their right to receive the promissory note. As such, the Company has determined the promissory note to be
compensatory and is accruing the expense over the
12
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service term. In December 2015, the Company agreed to pay the $1 million promissory note plus interest in January 2016 and, as
a result, accelerated the expense in 2015. BetterHelp was acquired to help the Company expand its operations in the direct ‑to
‑consumer behavioral health sector. The acquisition was considered a stock acquisition for tax purposes and as such, the goodwill
resulting from this acquisition is not tax deductible. The total transaction costs of the acquisition were $0.1 million.
The acquisitions described above were accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, which requires, among
other things, the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed be recognized at their fair values as of the acquisition date. The results
of the acquisitions were included within the consolidated financial statements commencing on the respective aforementioned
acquisition dates.
The following table summarizes the fair value estimates of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at each acquisition
date. The Company, with the assistance of a third-party valuation expert, estimated the fair value of the acquired tangible and
intangible assets.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed (in thousands):
StatDoc

Purchase price
Less:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Other assets
Client relationships
Non-compete agreements
Internal software
Trademarks
Accounts payable
Deferred tax
Other liabilities
Goodwill

$

29,991

$

360
419
70
3,220
1,070
2,960
—
(609)
—
(701)
23,202

BetterHelp

$

5,749

$

89
11
4
141
910
780
140
(6)
(666)
(340)
4,686

The amount allocated to goodwill reflects the benefits Teladoc expects to realize from the growth of the respective
acquisitions operations. BetterHelp and StatDoc’s operating results from the date of acquisition in 2015 to March 31, 2016 are
included in the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements .
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Note 4. Intangible Assets, Net
Intangible assets, net consist of the following (in thousands):

March 31, 2016
Client relationships
Non-compete agreements
Trademarks
Internal software
Intangible assets, net
December 31, 2015
Client relationships
Non-compete agreements
Trademarks
Internal software
Intangible assets, net

Useful
Life

2 to 10 years
3 to 5 years
3 years
3 years

2 to 10 years
3 to 5 years
3 years
3 years

Gross Value

Accumulated
Amortization

$ 11,651
3,410
140
6,047
$ 21,248

$

$ 11,651
3,410
140
5,662
$ 20,863

$

$

$

Net Carrying
Value

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Useful Life

8,009
1,783
84
4,712
14,588

7.7
2.1
1.8
3.5
5.6

8,432
2,050
96
4,687
15,265

7.9
2.3
2.1
3.8
5.9

(3,642)
(1,627)
(56)
(1,335)
(6,660)

$

(3,219)
(1,360)
(44)
(975)
(5,598)

$

$

$

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $1.1 million and $0.7 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.
Note 5. Goodwill
Goodwill consists of the following (in thousands):
As of March 31,
2016

Beginning balance
Additions associated with acquisitions
Goodwill

$
$

56,342
56,342

As of December 31,
2015

28,454
27,888
56,342

$
$

Note 6. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
As of December 31,
2016
2015

Professional fees
Consulting fees/cutomer service fees/provider fees
Legal fees
Interest payable
Marketing
Earnout and compensation
Lease abandonment
Deferred revenue
Other
Total

$

$

14

299
1,114
1,653
179
1,483
1,400
365
916
2,076
9,485

$

$

411
869
1,056
287
53
2,449
433
831
1,808
8,197
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Note 7. Fair Value Measurements
The Company measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value at each reporting period using a fair value
hierarchy that requires it to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring
fair value. A financial instrument’s classification within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Three levels of inputs may be used to measure fair value:
Level 1—Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.
Level 2—Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.
The Company measures its cash equivalents at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company classifies its cash
equivalents within Level 1 because they are valued using observable inputs that reflect quoted prices for identical assets in active
markets and quoted prices directly in active markets.
The Company measures its short-term investments at fair value on a recurring basis and classifies such as Level 2. They
are valued using observable inputs that reflect quoted prices directly or indirectly in active markets. The short-term investments
amortized cost approximates fair value.
The Company measures its contingent consideration at fair value on a recurring basis and classifies such as Level 3. The
Company estimates the fair value of contingent consideration as the present value of the expected contingent payments,
determined using the weighted probability of the possible payments.
The following tables present information about the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using the above input categories (in thousands):
March 31, 2016
Level 2
Level 3

Level 1

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Contingent liability (included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities
and other liabilities)

$ 49,156
$ 14,436

$ 1,037 $
$ 55,086 $

$

$

—

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Contingent liability (included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities
and other liabilities)

— $ 3,361 $

December 31, 2015
Level 2
Level 3

Level 1

Total

— $ 50,193
— $ 69,522
3,361

Total

$ 55,066
$
—

$
—
$ 82,282

$
$

—
—

$ 55,066
$ 82,282

$

$

$ 3,408

$ 3,408

—

—

There were no transfers between fair value measurement levels during the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.
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The change in fair value of the Company’s contingent liability is recorded in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations. The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balance of the Company’s Level 3
contingent liability:
Balance at December 31, 2015
Payments earned
Change in fair value
Fair value at March 31, 2016

$

$

3,408
(368)
321
3,361

Note 8. Long Term Bank and Other Debt
Long ‑term bank and other debt consist of the following (in thousands):
As of March 31,
2016

SVB Mezzanine Term Loan less debt discount of $147 and $190
SVB Term Loan Facility
SVB Revolving Advance Facility
Subordinated Promissory Note
Total
Less: current portion of SVB Term Loan Facility
Long term bank and other debt

$

$

12,853
3,854
6,500
3,000
26,207
(1,250)
24,957

As of December 31,
2015

$

$

12,810
4,167
6,500
3,000
26,477
(1,250)
25,227

Long term bank and other debt are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
In May 2014, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement with Silicon Valley
Bank (“SVB”) that provided for a Revolving Advance Facility and a Term Loan Facility (the “Amended Term Loan Facility”).
The Revolving Advance Facility provides for borrowings up to $12.0 million based on 300% of the Company’s monthly recurring
revenue, as defined therein. Borrowings under the Revolving Advance Facility were $6.5 million at March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015. The Revolving Advance Facility carries interest at a rate of 0.75% above the prime rate per annum and
matures in April 2017. Interest payments are payable monthly in arrears.
The Amended Term Loan Facility provides for borrowings up to $5.0 million. As of March 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015, the Company had utilized the total $5.0 million available under this Amended Term Loan Facility. The Amended Term
Loan Facility carries interest at a rate of 1.00% above the prime rate per annum. Interest payments are payable monthly in arrears.
Payments on the Amended Term Loan Facility commenced in May 2015 and continue with 47 equal monthly payments of
principal plus interest.
In May 2014, the Company entered into a Subordinated Loan and Security Agreement with SVB that provided for a
Mezzanine Term Loan totaling $13.0 million. The total $13.0 million drawdown of the Mezzanine Facility was completed in
September 2014. The Mezzanine Term Loan carries interest at a rate of 10.00% per annum and matures in May 2017. Interest
payments are payable monthly in arrears. In connection with entry into the Mezzanine Term Loan, the Company granted two
affiliates of SVB warrants to purchase an aggregate of 131,239 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of
$2.95 per share. The warrants were immediately exercisable and had a 10 ‑year term. See Note 12, “Common Stock and
Stockholders’ Equity”, for more information. The Company also granted SVB a security interest in significantly all of the
Company’s assets. The Mezzanine Term Loan has been used to fund the expansion of the Company’s business. The Amended
and Restated Loan and Security Agreement with SVB and the Subordinated Loan and Security Agreement are collectively
referred to as the “SVB Facilities”.
The Company incurred approximately $0.3 million of loan origination costs in connection with the SVB Facilities and
amortized approximately $24,000 and $21,000 during the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Effective with the purchase of AmeriDoc, LLC (“AmeriDoc”) in 2014, the Company executed a Subordinated
Promissory Note in the amount of $3.5 million payable to the seller of AmeriDoc on April 30, 2015. The Subordinated
Promissory Note carries interest at a rate of 10.00% annual interest and is subordinated to the SVB Facilities. In March 2015, the
Company, the seller of AmeriDoc and SVB executed an Amended and Restated Subordinated Promissory Note that extended the
maturity of the Amended and Restated Subordinated Promissory Note to April 30, 2017. In November 2015, the Company
executed the Second Amended and Restated Subordinated Promissory Note with a revised annual interest rate of 7% commencing
on January 1, 2016 and extended the maturity of the Second Amended and Restated Subordinated Promissory Note to April 30,
2018 with a seller put option effective on April 30, 2017. The Company repaid $0.5 million of principal on this Second Amended
and Restated Subordinated Promissory Note during 2015.
The Company was in compliance with all debt covenants at March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.
Note 9. Related Party Transaction
In May 2013, the Company issued a loan to an officer of the Company in the amount of $0.3 million. This was a non
‑cash transaction, whereby the loan proceeds were used to exercise options to purchase 312,474 shares of common stock options
of the Company at an exercise price of $0.80 per share. The loan carried an interest rate of 2% per annum and was due and
payable upon the earlier of (i) May 13, 2017 and (ii) the occurrence of a “Change of Control” as defined in the promissory note
evidencing the loan. The officer was required to make monthly interest payments. This loan was repaid in full to the Company in
February 2015.
Note 10. Lease Abandonment Charge
In connection with the Company’s abandonment of facilities in Dallas, Texas and Greenwich, Connecticut, the Company
incurred $0.4 million in lease abandonment charges during the quarter ended March 31, 2015. There were no lease abandonments
in 2016. The following table details the associated liability. The liability of $0.4 million was recorded in accrued expenses in the
consolidated balance sheet (in thousands):
Balance January 1, 2016
Charged to expense
Paid or settled
Balance March 31, 2016

$
$

474
(109)
365

Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Matters
The Company may become subject to legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of its
business. At March 31, 2016, the Company was party to the following legal proceedings:
Teladoc is plaintiff in two lawsuits in the Texas courts against the Texas Medical Board (the ‘‘TMB’’). In the first suit,
Teladoc v. TMB and Leshikar, on December 31, 2014, the Austin Court of Appeals granted Teladoc’s request for summary
judgment, invalidating the TMB’s prior assertion that Teladoc’s doctors do not form ‘‘proper professional relationships’’ with
Teladoc’s members in the course of telehealth consultations such as would support the prescription of medications. The TMB has
filed a petition for review with the Texas Supreme Court to ask that Court if it will allow the TMB to appeal the Court of
Appeals’s decision. This petition is pending. In the second suit, Teladoc et al. v. TMB et al., the United States District Court for
the Western District of Texas, Austin Division, held a hearing on May 22, 2015 on Teladoc’s motion for preliminary injunction of
the rule amendments the TMB adopted on April 10, 2015 that seek to effect substantively identical restrictions as at issue in the
prior lawsuit in state court. On May 29, 2015, the court granted Teladoc’s request for a preliminary injunction of the rule
amendments, pending ultimate trial on the amendments’ validity. On July 30, 2015, the TMB filed a motion to dismiss the suit,
and the federal court denied this motion on December 14, 2015. On January 8, 2016, the TMB provided notice of its intent to
appeal the federal court’s denial of its motion to dismiss to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit, which appeal has not
yet been filed. On
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January 14, 2016, the federal court granted the parties’ joint motion to stay the trial case pending the aforementioned appeal.
Accordingly, no trial date has been set.
Business in the State of Texas accounted for approximately $3.9 million (or 14% ) and $12.6 million (or 16%) of the
Company’s consolidated revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and during the year ended December 31, 2015,
respectively. If the TMB’s proposed rule amendments go into effect as written and Teladoc is unable to adapt its business model
in compliance with the revised rules, its ability to operate its business in the State of Texas could be materially adversely affected,
which would have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.
On June 8, 2015, American Well Corporation filed a complaint against Teladoc in the United States District Court for
the District of Massachusetts alleging that certain of its operating platform’s technology infringes one of American Well’s
patents, which patent Teladoc is seeking to invalidate pursuant to a petition for inter partes review that Teladoc filed with the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office’s Patent Trial and Appeals Board in March 2015. On November 11, 2015, Teladoc filed a
motion to dismiss American Well’s complaint. This motion is pending before the court. Teladoc has investigated the claims
alleged in American Well’s complaint and believes that it has good defenses to the claims. However, were Teladoc ultimately not
to prevail in the lawsuit, its results of operations would be affected.
Other than as stated the Company is not a party to any material legal proceeding, and it is not aware of any pending or
threatened litigation that would have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations, cash flows or financial
condition should such litigation be resolved unfavorably.
The Company routinely assesses all of its litigation and threatened litigation as to the probability of ultimately incurring
a liability and records its best estimate of the ultimate loss in situations where it assesses the likelihood of loss as probable and
estimable. In this regard, the Company establishes accrual estimates for various lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings
when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability incurred at the date of the financial statements and the loss can be
reasonably estimated. At March 31, 2016, the Company has established accruals for certain of its lawsuits, claims, investigations
and proceedings based upon estimates of the most likely outcome in a range of loss or the minimum amounts in a range of loss if
no amount within a range is a more likely estimate. The Company does not believe that at March 31, 2016 any reasonably
possible losses in excess of the amounts accrued would be material to the unaudited consolidated financial statements.
Note 12. Common Stock and Stockholders’ Equity
Capitalization
On July 7, 2015, Teladoc closed on its initial public offering (the “IPO”) in which the Company issued and sold
9,487,500 shares of common stock, including the exercise of an underwriter option to purchase additional shares, at an issuance
price of $19.00 per share. The Company received net proceeds of $163.1 million after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions of $12.6 million as well as other offering expenses of $4.5 million.
On June 17, 2015, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation to
effect a one ‑for ‑2.2859 reverse stock split of all outstanding shares of common stock with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware. The Certificate of Amendment provides that every 2.2859 shares of the Company’s issued and outstanding common
stock automatically combine into one issued and outstanding share of the Company’s common stock. The Certificate of
Amendment did not change the par value of the Company’s common stock and preferred stock. All shares and per share amounts
in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to the reverse
stock split. In addition, the Certificate of Amendment increased the number of authorized shares of the Company’s common stock
to 75,000,000 shares and the number of authorized shares of the Company’s preferred stock to 50,479,286 shares. Additionally,
the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of the preferred Stock (voting as a single class on an as ‑converted basis,
including holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Series F preferred stock) approved the automatic conversion
of the preferred stock into common stock of the Company upon the closing of an initial public offering of the common stock of
the Company at a per share price of at least $12.00 (prior to underwriting discounts and commissions) that results in aggregate
proceeds to
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the Company of at least $75.0 million (net of underwriting discounts and commissions). On July 7, 2015, all of the Company’s
then-outstanding convertible preferred stock converted into an aggregate of 25.5 million shares of common stock and all of the
Company’s redeemable common stock converted into 113,294 shares of common stock.
Warrants
On May 2, 2014, the Company issued 131,239 common stock warrants to purchase an aggregate of 131,239 shares of its
common stock at an exercise price of $2.95 per share to two entities affiliated with SVB. The common stock warrants were
immediately exercisable upon issuance and had a 10-year term. The fair value of the common stock warrants on the date of issue
was approximately $0.2 million which was recorded as an increase to additional paid in capital and as a debt discount.
On July 24, 2015, the Company issued an aggregate of 59,281 shares of common stock from the cashless exercise of
65,620 warrants at an exercise price of $2.95 per share for one of the affiliates.
On December 22, 2015, the Company issued an aggregate of 54,830 shares of common stock from the cashless exercise
of 65,619 warrants at an exercise price of $2.95 per share for one of the affiliates.
The Company had no warrants outstanding as of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.
Stock Plan and Stock Options
The Company’s 2015 Incentive Award Plan (the “Plan”) provides for the issuance of incentive and nonstatutory options
and other equity-based awards to its employees and non ‑employees. Options issued under the Plan are exercisable for periods not
to exceed ten years, and vest and contain such other terms and conditions as specified in the applicable award document. Prior to
becoming a public enterprise, pursuant to the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan which is now
retired, the Company historically issued incentive and non-statutory stock options with exercise prices equal to the fair value of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, as determined by the Company’s board of directors informed by third-party
valuations. Subsequent to becoming a public enterprise, only options to buy common stock have been issued under the Plan, with
exercise prices equal to the closing price of shares of the Company’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the
trading day immediately preceding the date of award.
Activity under the Plan is as follows (in thousands, except share and per share amounts and years):

Balance at December 31, 2015
Increase in Plan authorized shares
Stock option grants
Stock options exercised
Stock options expired
Balance at March 31, 2016
Vested or expected to vest March 31, 2016
Exercisable as of March 31, 2016

Shares
Available
for Grant

Number of
Shares
Outstanding

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

1,986,390
1,940,154
(1,828,900)
—
9,223
2,106,867

3,853,479
—
1,828,900
(184,941)
(9,223)
5,488,215
5,095,391
1,242,704

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

7.62
—
—
—
—
9.46
9.32
3.63

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Life in Years

8.54
—
—
—
—
8.89
8.85
7.52

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

$ 41,894
$
—
$
—
$
—
$
—
$ 13,270
$ 12,802
$ 7,421

The total grant ‑date fair value of stock options granted during the quarter ended March 31, 2016 was $10.4 million.
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Stock ‑Based Compensation
All stock ‑based awards to employees are measured based on the grant ‑date fair value of the awards and are generally
recognized in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations over the period during which the employee is required to
perform services in exchange for the award (generally requiring a four ‑year vesting period for each award). The Company
estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black ‑Scholes option ‑pricing model. Compensation cost is generally
recognized over the vesting period of the applicable award using the straight ‑line method.
Given the absence of a public trading market prior to July 2015, the Company’s board of directors considered numerous
objective and subjective factors to determine the fair value of its common stock at each grant date. These factors included, but
were not limited to, (i) contemporaneous valuations of common stock performed by unrelated third ‑party specialists; (ii) the
prices for the preferred stock sold to outside investors; (iii) the rights, preferences and privileges of the preferred stock relative to
the common stock; (iv) the lack of marketability of the common stock; (v) developments in the business; and (vi) the likelihood
of achieving a liquidity event, such as an IPO or a merger or acquisition of the Company, given prevailing market conditions.
The assumptions used in the Black ‑Scholes option ‑pricing model were determined as follows:
Volatility. Since the Company does not have a trading history prior to July 2015 for its common stock, the expected
volatility was derived from the historical stock volatilities of several unrelated public companies within its industry that it
considers to be comparable to its business over a period equivalent to the expected term of the stock option grants.
Risk ‑Free Interest Rate. The risk ‑free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero ‑coupon issues with remaining
terms similar to the expected term on the options.
Expected Term. The expected term represents the period that the stock ‑based awards are expected to be outstanding.
When establishing the expected term assumption, the Company used the “simplified” method because the Company does not
have adequate historical data.
Dividend Yield. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends and does not plan to pay cash dividends in
the foreseeable future, and therefore, it used an expected dividend yield of zero.
Forfeiture rate. The Company uses historical data to estimate pre ‑ vesting option forfeitures and record stock ‑based
compensation expense only for those awards that are expected to vest.
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The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black ‑Scholes option ‑pricing model
with the following assumptions and fair value per share:
Quarters Ended March 31,
2016
2015

Volatility
Expected life (in years)
Risk-free interest rate
Dividend yield
Weighted-average fair value of underlying common stock

44.7% – 46.0%
6.0
1.24% - 1.91%
–
$
5.71

50.4% – 51.0%
7.0
1.58% - 1.92%
–
$
4.62

Total compensation costs charged as an expense for stock ‑based awards, including stock options, recognized in the
components of operating expenses are as follows (in thousands):
Quarters Ended
March 31,
2016
2015

Administrative and marketing
Sales
Technology and development
General and administrative
Total stock-based compensation expense

$

$

101
211
209
767
1,288

$

$

18
70
40
683
811

As of March 31, 2016, the Company had $19.4 million in unrecognized compensation cost related to non ‑vested stock
options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted ‑average period of approximately 3.4 years.
Note 13. Income Taxes
As a result of the Company’s history of net operating losses, the Company has provided for a full valuation allowance
against its deferred tax assets for assets that are not more-likely-than-not to be realized. A deferred tax provision was recognized
for the quarter ended March 31, 2016, primarily attributable to the timing differences with respect to the treatment of the
amortization of tax deductible goodwill. For the three months ended March 31, 2015, an income tax benefit was recognised as a
result of acquisition activity partially offset by the aforementioned timing differences.
Substantially all of the Company’s operations, and resulting deferred tax assets, were generated in the United States.
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Item 2 . Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical fact are, or
may be, forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts, but rather are based on current
expectations, estimate, assumptions and projections about our industry, business and future financial results. We use words such
as “anticipates”, “believes”, “suggests”, “targets”, “projects”, “plans”, “expects”, “future”, “intends”, “estimates”, “predicts”,
“potential”, “may”, “will”, “should”, “could”, “would”, “likely”, “foresee”, “forecast”, “continue” and other similar words or
phrases, as well as statements in the future tense to identify these forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that may cause
our actual results, performance or achievements to be different from any future results, performance and achievements expressed
or implied by these statements. Our actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-looking
statements due to a number of important factors, including those set forth below.
·

ongoing legal challenges to or new state actions against our business model;

·

our dependence on our relationships with affiliated professional entities;

·

evolving government regulations and our ability to stay abreast of new or modified laws and regulations that
currently apply or become applicable to our business;

·

our ability to operate in the heavily regulated healthcare industry;

·

our history of net losses and accumulated deficit;

·

the impact of recent healthcare reform legislation and other changes in the healthcare industry;

·

risk of the loss of any of our significant Clients;

·

risks associated with a decrease in the number of individuals offered benefits by our Clients or the number of
products and services to which they subscribe;

·

our ability to establish and maintain strategic relationships with third parties;

·

our ability to recruit and retain a network of qualified Providers;

·

risk that the insurance we maintain may not fully cover all potential exposures;

·

rapid technological change in the telehealth market;

·

risks associated with a material weakness that has been identified;

·

any statements of belief and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing;

·

other factors disclosed in this Form 10-Q; and

·

other factors beyond our control.

The foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive, and does not necessarily include all of the important factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any of our forward-looking statements. The information in this
Quarterly Report should be read carefully in conjunction with other uncertainties and potential events described in our registration
statements on Form S-1 (File No.333-204577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), our Form 10-K
in the Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2015 and our other filings with the SEC. The forward-looking statements
included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are made only as of the date of this Quarterly Report. Except as required by law
or regulation, we do not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or
circumstances.
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Overview
We are the nation’s first and largest telehealth platform, delivering on-demand healthcare anytime, anywhere, via mobile
devices, the internet, video and phone. Our solution connects consumers, or our Members, with our over 3,100 board-certified
physicians and behavioral health professionals who treat a wide range of conditions and cases from acute diagnoses such as upper
respiratory infection, urinary tract infection and sinusitis to dermatological conditions, anxiety and smoking cessation. Over
15 million unique Members now benefit from access to Teladoc 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year, at a cost
from $40 to $45 per visit. Our solution is delivered with a median response time of less than ten minutes from the time a Member
requests a telehealth visit to the time they speak with a Teladoc physician. We completed approximately 240,000 telehealth visits
in the first three months of 2016 and approximately 576,000 telehealth visits for the full year in 2015. Membership increased by
approximately 4.5 million members from March 31, 2015 through March 31, 2016.
The Teladoc solution is transforming the access, cost and quality dynamics of healthcare delivery for all of our market
participants. Our Members rely on Teladoc to remotely access affordable, on-demand healthcare whenever and wherever they
choose. Employers, health plans and consumers (our “Clients”) purchase our solution to reduce their healthcare spending while at
the same time offering convenient, affordable, high-quality healthcare to their employees or beneficiaries. Our network of
physicians and other healthcare professionals (our “Providers”) have the ability to generate meaningful income and deliver their
services more efficiently with no administrative burden. We believe the value proposition of our solution is evidenced by our
overall Member satisfaction rate, which has exceeded 95% over the last seven years. We further believe any consumer, employer
or health plan or practitioner interested in a better approach to healthcare is a potential Teladoc Member, Client or Provider.
In July 2015, we successfully closed on our IPO in which the Company issued and sold 9,487,500 shares of common
stock, including the exercise of an underwriter option to purchase additional shares, at an issuance price of $19.00 per share. We
received net proceeds of $163.1 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $12.6 million as well as other
offering expenses of $4.5 million. On July 7, 2015, all of the Company’s then-outstanding convertible preferred stock converted
into an aggregate of 25.5 million shares of common stock and all of the Company’s redeemable common stock converted into
113,294 shares of common stock.
We generate revenue from our Clients on a contractually recurring, per-Member-per-month, subscription access fee
basis, which provides us with significant revenue visibility. In addition, under the majority of our Client contracts, we generate
additional revenue on a per-telehealth visit basis, through a visit fee. Subscription access fees are paid by our Clients on behalf of
their employees, dependents, beneficiaries or themselves, while visit fees are paid by either Clients or Members. We generated
$26.9 million and $16.5 million in revenue for the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, representing 63% yearover-year growth. We had net losses of $15.3 million and $12.7 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. For the quarter ended March 31, 2016, 77% and 23% of our revenue was derived from subscription access fees and
visit fees, respectively.
Acquisition History
We have scaled and intend to continue to scale our platform through the pursuit of selective acquisitions. We completed
four acquisitions since our inception, which we believe have expanded our distribution capabilities and broadened our service
offering. During 2015 we completed the following acquisitions.
On June 17, 2015, we completed our acquisition of StatDoc for aggregate consideration of $30.1 million, comprised of
$13.3 million of cash and $16.8 million of our common stock (or 1,051,033 shares), net of cash acquired. StatDoc is a
telemedicine provider, focused on managed care, health system and self-insured clients.
In January 2015, we completed the acquisition of BetterHelp, a provider of direct-to-consumer, behavioral health
services, for $3.3 million net of cash acquired, and a $1.0 million promissory note and we have agreed to make annual payments
to the sellers equal to a percentage of the total net revenue generated by the BetterHelp business through February 2019. This
acquisition helps us broaden our service into the direct-to-consumer and behavioral health sector.
Key Factors Affecting Our Performance
Number of Members. Our revenue growth rate and long-term profitability are affected by our ability to increase our
number of Members because we derive a substantial portion of our revenue from subscription access fees
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via Client contracts that provide Members access to our professional Provider network in exchange for a contractual based
monthly fee. Revenue is driven primarily by the number of Clients, the number of Members in a Client’s population, the number
of services contracted for by a Client and the contractually negotiated prices of our services and the negotiated pricing that is
specific to that particular Client. We believe that increasing our membership is an integral objective that will provide us with the
ability to continually innovate our services and support initiatives that will enhance Member experiences. Membership increased
by approximately 4.5 million members from March 31, 2015 through March 31, 2016.
Number of Visits. We also realize revenue in connection with the completion of a visit for the majority of our contracts.
Accordingly, our visit revenue, or visit fees, increase as the number of visits increase. Visit fee revenue is driven primarily by the
number of Clients, the number of Members in a Client’s population, Member utilization of our Provider network services and the
contractually negotiated prices of our services. We believe that increasing our current Member utilization rate is a key objective in
order for our Clients to realize tangible healthcare savings with our service. Visits increased by approximately 91,000 from March
31, 2015 through March 31, 2016.
Seasonality. We typically experience the strongest increases in consecutive quarterly revenue during the fourth and first
quarters of each year, which coincides with traditional annual benefit enrollment seasons. In particular, as a result of many
Clients’ introduction of new services at the very end of the current year, or the start of each year, the majority of our new Client
contracts have an effective date of January 1. Additionally, as a result of national seasonal cold and flu trends, we experience our
highest level of visit fees during the first and fourth quarters of each year when compared to other quarters of the
year. Conversely, the second quarter of the year has historically been the period of lowest utilization of our Provider network
services relative to the other quarters of the year. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business—Our quarterly results may
fluctuate significantly, which could adversely impact the value of our common stock.” included in our Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2015 filed with the SEC.
Components of Results of Operations
Revenue
We generate approximately 80% of our revenue from our Clients who purchase access to our professional Provider
network for their employees, dependents and other beneficiaries. Our Client contracts include a per-Member-per-month
subscription access fee as well as a visit fee for each completed visit, which is either paid to us by the Client, the Member or both
parties. Accordingly, we generate subscription access revenue from our subscription access fees and visit revenue from our visit
fees.
Subscription access revenue accounted for approximately 77% and 80% of our total revenue during the quarters ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Subscription access revenue is driven primarily by the number of Clients, the number of
Members in a Client’s population, the number of services contracted for by a Client and the contractually negotiated prices of our
services. Visit fee revenue is driven primarily by the number of Clients, the number of Members in a Client’s population, Member
utilization of our professional Provider network services and the contractually negotiated prices of our services.
We recognize subscription access fees monthly when the following criteria are met: (i) there is an executed subscription
agreement, (ii) the Member has access to the service, (iii) collection of the fees is reasonably assured and (iv) the amount of fees
to be paid by the Client and Member is fixed and determinable. Our agreements generally have a term of one year. The majority
of Clients renew their contracts with us following their first year of services. We generally invoice our Members in advance on a
monthly basis. Visit fees are recognized as incurred and billed in arrears.
Warranties and Indemnification
Our arrangements generally include certain provisions for indemnifying Clients against liabilities if there is a breach of a
Client’s data or if our service infringes a third party’s intellectual property rights. To date, we have not incurred any material costs
as a result of such indemnifications.
We have also agreed to indemnify our directors and executive officers for costs associated with any fees, expenses,
judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by any of these persons in any action or proceeding to which any of those
persons is, or is threatened to be, made a party by reason of the person’s service as a director or officer, including any action by
us, arising out of that person’s services as our director or officer or that person’s services
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provided to any other company or enterprise at our request. We maintain director and officer liability insurance coverage that
would generally enable us to recover a portion of any future amounts paid. We may also be subject to indemnification obligations
by law with respect to the actions of our employees under certain circumstances and in certain jurisdictions.
Concentrations of Risk and Significant Clients
Our financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments and accounts receivable. Although we deposit our cash with multiple financial institutions, our deposits, at
times, may exceed federally insured limits. Our short-term investments are comprised of a portfolio of diverse high credit rating
instruments with maturity durations of 1 year or less.
During the quarter ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, substantially all of our revenue was generated by Clients located in
the United States. No Client represented over 10% of revenues for the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.
No Client represented more than 10% of accounts receivable for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 and year ended
December 31, 2015.
Cost of Revenue
Cost of revenue primarily consists of fees paid to our Providers, costs incurred in connection with our Provider network
operations, which include employee-related expenses (including salaries and benefits), costs related to our call center activities
and insurance, which includes coverage for medical malpractice claims. Cost of revenue is driven primarily by the number of
visits completed in each period. Many of the elements of the cost of revenue are relatively variable and semi-variable, and can be
reduced in the near-term to offset any decline in our revenue. Our business and operational models are designed to be highly
scalable and leverage variable costs to support revenue-generating activities. While we currently expect to grow our headcount to
build our Provider network operations center and to enhance our sales and technology capabilities and support business growth,
we believe our increased investment in automation and integration capabilities and economies of scale in our Provider network
operations center operating model, will position us to grow our revenue at a greater rate than our cost of revenue.
Gross Profit
Our gross profit is our total revenue minus our total cost of revenue, and our gross margin is our gross profit expressed
as a percentage of our total revenue. Our gross margin has been and will continue to be affected by a number of factors, including
the fees we charge our Clients, the number of visits we complete and the costs of running our Provider network operations center.
We expect our annual gross margin to remain relatively steady over the near term, although our quarterly gross margin is
expected to fluctuate from period to period depending on the interplay of these aforementioned factors.
Advertising and Marketing Expenses
Advertising and marketing expenses consist primarily of personnel and related expenses for our marketing staff,
including costs of communications materials that are produced to generate greater awareness and utilization among our Clients
and Members. Marketing costs also include third-party independent research, trade shows and brand messages, public relations
costs and stock-based compensation for our advertising and marketing employees. Our advertising and marketing expenses
exclude certain allocations of occupancy expense as well as depreciation and amortization.
We expect our advertising and marketing expenses to increase for the foreseeable future as we continue to increase the
size of our advertising and marketing operations and expand into new products and markets. Our advertising and marketing
expenses will fluctuate as a percentage of our total revenue from period to period due to the seasonality of our total revenue and
the timing and extent of our advertising campaigns and marketing expenses. We will continue to invest in advertising and
marketing by hiring additional personnel and promoting our brand through a variety of marketing and public relations activities.
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Sales Expenses
Sales expenses consist primarily of employee-related expenses, including salaries, benefits, commissions, employment
taxes, travel and stock-based compensation costs for our employees engaged in sales, account management and sales support. Our
sales expenses exclude certain allocations of occupancy expense as well as depreciation and amortization.
We expect our sales expenses to increase as we strategically invest to expand our business. We expect to hire additional
sales personnel and related account management and sales support personnel to capture an increasing amount of our market
opportunity. As we scale our sales and related account management and sales support personnel in the short- to medium-term, we
expect these expenses to increase. We will continue to invest in sales by hiring additional sales and account management and
sales support personnel.
Technology and Development Expenses
Technology and development expenses include personnel and related expenses for software engineering, information
technology infrastructure, security and compliance and product development. Technology and development expenses also include
outsourced software engineering services, the costs of operating our on-demand technology infrastructure and stock-based
compensation for our technology and development employees. Our technology and development expenses exclude certain
allocations of occupancy expense as well as depreciation and amortization.
We expect our technology and development expenses to increase for the foreseeable future as we continue to invest in
the development of our technology platform. Our technology and development expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of our
total revenue from period to period due to the seasonality of our total revenue and the timing and extent of our technology and
development expenses. Historically, the majority of our technology and development expenses has been expensed.
General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses include personnel and related expenses of, and professional fees incurred by, our
executive, finance, product development, legal, business development, operations and human resources departments. They also
include stock-based compensation and most of the facilities costs including utilities and facilities maintenance. Our general and
administrative expenses exclude any allocation of depreciation and amortization.
We expect our general and administrative expenses to increase for the foreseeable future due to costs that we incur as a
new public company, as well as other costs associated with continuing to grow our business. However, we expect our general and
administrative expenses to decrease as a percentage of our total revenue over the next several years. Our general and
administrative expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of our total revenue from period to period due to the seasonality of our
total revenue and the timing and extent of our general and administrative expenses.
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization consists primarily of depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of capitalized software
development costs and amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets.
Interest Income (Expense), Net
Interest income (expense), net consists of interest activity associated with our bank, other debt and short-term
investments.
Income Tax Provision (Benefit)
We account for income taxes using the liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial reporting carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and tax credit and net operating losses (“NOLs”). Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
We assess the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and a valuation allowance is
established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts
26

Table of Contents

more likely than not expected to be realized. We have also recorded deferred tax liabilities arising principally from the treatment
of goodwill for tax purposes compared to financial accounting book purposes. We have provided a full valuation allowance for
our deferred tax assets at March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, due to the uncertainty surrounding the future realization of
such deferred tax assets.
Consolidated Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our consolidated statement of operations data for the three months ended March 31, 2016
and 2015 and the dollar and percentage change between the respective periods:
2016
$

Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Advertising and marketing
Sales
Technology and development
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
EBITDA
Depreciation and amortization
Loss from operations
Interest income (expense), net

$

Net loss before taxes
Income tax (provision) benefit
Net loss

$

26,888
7,943
18,945

Three Months Ended March 31,
2015
$
Variance

$

16,488
5,281
11,207

$

%(a)

10,399
2,661
7,738

63 %
50 %
69 %
85
43
80
14
40
13
67
17
25

8,050
5,270
5,225
13,607
32,152
(13,207)
1,508
(14,715)
(427)

4,341
3,682
2,906
11,968
22,897
(11,690)
903
(12,593)
(568)

3,709
1,588
2,319
1,639
9,255
(1,517)
605
(2,122)
141

(15,142)
(162)

(13,161)
458

(1,981)
(620)

15 %
-135%

(2,601)

20 %

(15,304)

$

(12,703)

$

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

(1) EBITDA consists of net income (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. See additional information
regarding EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA at the end of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.
Adjusted EBITDA
The following table reconciles net loss to Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015:
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2016
2015

Net loss
Add (deduct):
Interest (income) expense, net
Provision for income taxes (benefits)
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
EBITDA
Stock-based compensation
Adjusted EBITDA(1)
(1)

Adjusted EBITDA
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$

(15,304)

$

427
162
447
1,061
(13,207)
1,288
(11,919)

$

(12,703)

$

568
(458)
214
689
(11,690)
811
(10,879)
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To supplement our financial information presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States, or U.S. GAAP, we use Adjusted EBITDA, a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure. We believe that the presentation
of this financial measure enhances an investor’s understanding of our financial performance. We further believe that this financial
measure is a useful financial metric to assess our operating performance from period-to-period by excluding certain items that we
believe are not representative of our core business. We use certain financial measures for business planning purposes and in
measuring our performance relative to that of our competitors. Accordingly, we utilize Adjusted EBITDA as the primary measure
of our performance.
Adjusted EBITDA consists of net loss before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and stock-based compensation.
We believe that making such adjustment provides investors meaningful information to understand our results of operations and
the ability to analyze financial and business trends on a period-to-period basis.
We believe this financial measure is commonly used by investors to evaluate our performance and that of our
competitors. However, our use of the term Adjusted EBITDA may vary from that of others in our industry. Adjusted EBITDA
should not be considered as an alternative to net loss before taxes, net loss, loss per share or any other performance measures
derived in accordance with U.S. GAAP as measures of performance.
Adjusted EBITDA has an important limitation as an analytical tool and you should not consider it in isolation or as a
substitute for analysis of our results as reported under U.S. GAAP. Some of these limitations are:
Adjusted EBITDA:
·

does not reflect the significant interest expense on our debt; and

·

does not reflect the significant non cash stock compensation expense which should be viewed as a component of
recurring operating costs; and

·

eliminates the impact of income taxes on our results of operations; and

·

although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will often have
to be replaced in the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect any expenditures for such replacements; and

·

other companies in our industry may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do, limiting the usefulness of
Adjusted EBITDA as comparative measures.

We compensate for these limitations by using Adjusted EBITDA along with other comparative tools, together with
U.S. GAAP measurements, to assist in the evaluation of operating performance. Such U.S. GAAP measurements include gross
profit, net loss, net loss per share and other performance measures.
In evaluating these financial measures, you should be aware that in the future we may incur expenses similar to those
eliminated in this presentation. Our presentation of Adjusted EBITDA should not be construed as an inference that our future
results will be unaffected by unusual or nonrecurring items.
Consolidated Results of Operations Discussion
We completed our acquisitions of Gateway on July 31, 2015, StatDoc on June 17, 2015 and BetterHelp on January 23,
2015. The results of operations of BetterHelp, StatDoc and Gateway since their respective acquisition dates have been included in
our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report.
Revenue. Total revenue was $26.9 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016, compared to $16.5 million during the
quarter ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $10.4 million, or 63%. The increase in revenue was substantially driven by an
increase in new Clients and the number of new Members generating additional subscription access fees. The increase in
subscription access fees was due to the addition of new Clients, as the number of Members increased by 42% from March 31,
2015 to March 31, 2016. We experienced approximately 240,000 visits, representing $6.2 million of visit fees for the quarter
ended March 31, 2016, compared to approximately 149,000 visits, representing $3.3 million of visit fees during the quarter ended
March 31, 2015, an increase of $2.9 million, or 87%.
Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue was $7.9 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 compared to $5.3 million for
the quarter ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $2.6 million, or 50%. The increase was primarily due to increased telehealth
visits resulting in increased provider fees, increased physician network operation center costs.
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Gross Profit. Gross profit was $18.9 million, or 70% as a percentage of revenue, for the quarter ended March 31, 2016
compared to $11.2 million, or 68%, as a percentage of revenue, for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $7.7 million,
or 69%. The increase was primarily due to the aforementioned revenue and cost of revenue growth.
Advertising and Marketing Expenses. Advertising and marketing expenses were $8.0 million for the quarter ended
March 31, 2016 compared to $4.3 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $3.7 million, or 85%. This
increase primarily consisted of increased member engagement initiatives, sponsorship of professional organizations and trade
shows of $3.1 million, increased staffing of $0.4 million and other expenses of $0.2 million.
Sales Expenses. Sales expenses were $5.3 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 compared to $3.7 million for
the quarter ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $1.6 million, or 43%. This increase primarily consisted of increased staffing and
sales commissions of $1.3 million and an increase to other sales expenses of $0.3 million.
Technology and Development Expenses. Technology and development expenses were $5.2 million for the quarter ended
March 31, 2016 compared to $2.9 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $2.3 million, or 80%. This
increase resulted primarily from hiring additional personnel totaling $2.2 million.
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses were $13.6 million for the quarter ended
March 31, 2016 compared to $12.0 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $1.6 million, or 14%. This
increase was driven primarily by an increase in employee-related expenses of approximately $2.2 million as a result of growth in
total employee headcount to 618 at March 31, 2016 as compared to 259 at March 31, 2015. Other expenses, which include officerelated charges and bank charges, increased by $1.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 as compared to March 31,
2015 to support the growth of our business.
The aforementioned increases are partially offset by $1.2 million as a result of a reduction in our physician network
operations costs as we migrated all previously outsourced call center activities in-house. Professional fees, principally legal,
decreased by $0.6 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 as compared to the quarter ended March 31, 2015.
Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization was $1.5 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016
compared to $0.9 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $0.6 million, or 67%. The increase was due to
additional amortization expenses primarily related to acquisition-related intangible assets that grew from $12.5 million at March
31, 2015 to $21.2 million at March 31, 2016 and an increase of depreciation expense on an increased base of depreciable fixed
assets that grew from $2.7 million at March 31, 2015 to $8.6 million at March 31, 2016.
Interest Income (Expense), Net. Interest income (expense), net consists of interest costs associated with our bank and
other debt and interest income from short-term investments in marketable securities. Interest income (expense), net was $0.4
million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 compared to $0.6 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2015. The decrease in net
interest expense reflects higher interest income from our short-term investments.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table presents a summary of our cash flow activity for the periods set forth below:
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2016
2015

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data
Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities
Total

$

$

(17,130)
12,074
183
(4,872)

$ (10,336)
(4,068)
28
$ (14,376)

Since our inception, we have financed our operations primarily through private sales of equity securities and to a lesser
extent, bank borrowings. In July 2015, we received $163.1 million of net cash proceeds associated with the issuance of 9,487,500
shares of common stock in conjunction with our IPO, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $12.6 million as
well as other offering expenses of $4.5 million.
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Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents totaling $50.2 million as of March 31, 2016, which were
held for working capital purposes. In addition, we have $69.5 million of short-term investments in marketable securities. Our cash
and cash equivalents are comprised of money market funds and marketable securities.
Cash Used in Operating Activities
For the three months ended March 31, 2016, cash used in operating activities was $17.1 million. The negative cash flows
resulted primarily from our net loss of $15.3 million, partially offset by depreciation and amortization of $1.5 million, allowance
for doubtful accounts of $0.8 million, stock-based compensation of $1.3 million, deferred income tax of $0.2 million and
accretion of interest of $0.1 million. These items are offset by the effect of changes in working capital and other balance sheet
accounts resulting in cash outflows of approximately $5.7 million, all of which was the result of growth of the business.
For the three months ended March 31, 2015, cash used in operating activities was $10.3 million. The negative cash flows
resulted primarily from our net loss of $12.7 million, partially offset by depreciation and amortization of $0.9 million, allowance
for doubtful accounts of $0.5 million, stock-based compensation of $0.8 million and the effect of changes in working capital and
other balance sheet accounts resulting in cash inflows of approximately $0.6 million. These items were offset by deferred income
taxes of $0.4 million.
The increase in cash used in operating activities was primarily the result of additional headcount, increased marketing
expenses, costs incurred to improve and optimize our technology platform, increases in our physician network operations center
and office-related charges to support the growth of our business.
Cash Provided by (Used) in Investing Activities
Cash provided by investing activities was $12.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016. Cash provided by
investing activities consisted of purchase and maturities of short-term marketable securities of $12.7 million, net of sales, and
offset by purchases of property and equipment totaling $0.2 million and investments in internally developed capitalized software
of $0.4 million.
Cash used in investing activities was $4.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Cash used in investing
activities consisted of the acquisitions of BetterHelp of $3.3 million, purchases of property and equipment totaling $0.4 million
and investments in internally developed capitalized software of $0.4 million.
Cash Provided by Financing Activities
Historically, our primary financing activities have consisted of private sales of preferred stock and bank and other
borrowings. In July 2015, we generated cash proceeds from our IPO.
Cash provided by financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2016 was $0.2 million. Cash provided by
financing activities consisted of proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options of $0.5 million, offset by repayment of
$0.3 million under the Revolving Advance Facility.
Cash provided by financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2015 consisted of proceeds from the
exercise of employee stock options.
Looking Forward
As a result of our recent IPO, we received $163.1 million of net cash proceeds in July 2015. Currently, we anticipate
negative EBITDA results through the end of 2017.
We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital
expenditure needs for at least the next 12 months. Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors including our
growth rate, contract renewal activity, number of visits, the timing and extent of spending to support product development efforts,
our expansion of sales and marketing activities, the introduction of new and enhanced service offerings and the continuing market
acceptance of telehealth. We may in the future enter into arrangements to acquire or invest in complementary businesses, services
and technologies and intellectual property rights. We may be required to seek additional equity or debt financing. In the event that
additional financing is required from outside sources, we may not be able to raise it on terms acceptable to us or at all. If we are
unable to raise additional capital when desired, our business, financial condition and results of operations would be adversely
affected.
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Indebtedness
In May 2014, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement with Silicon Valley
Bank (“SVB”) that provided for a Revolving Advance facility and a Term Loan Facility (the “Amended Term Loan Facility”).
The Revolving Advance Facility provides for borrowings up to $12.0 million based on 300% of the Company’s monthly recurring
revenue, as defined therein. Borrowings under the Revolving Advance Facility were $6.5 million at March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015. The Revolving Advance Facility carries interest at a rate of 0.75% above the prime rate per annum and was
to mature in April 2016. The Company entered into an amendment to the Revolving Advance Facility in March 2015 that
extended its maturity to April 2017. Interest payments are payable monthly in arrears.
The Amended Term Loan Facility provides for borrowings up to $5.0 million. As of March 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015, the Company had utilized the total $5.0 million available under this Amended Term Loan Facility. The Amended Term
Loan Facility carries interest at a rate of 1.00% above the prime rate per annum. Interest payments are payable monthly in arrears.
Payments on the Amended Term Loan Facility commenced in May 2015 and continue with 47 equal monthly payments of
principal plus interest.
In May 2014, the Company entered into a Subordinated Loan and Security Agreement with SVB that provided for a
Mezzanine Term Loan totaling $13.0 million. The total $13.0 million drawdown of the Mezzanine Term Loan was completed in
September 2014. The Mezzanine Term Loan carries interest at a rate of 10.00% per annum and matures in May 2017. Interest
payments are payable monthly in arrears. In connection with entry into the Mezzanine Term Loan, the Company granted two
affiliates of SVB warrants to purchase an aggregate of 131,239 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of
$2.95 per share. The warrants were immediately exercisable and had a 10 ‑year term and were exercised in 2015. See Note 12,
“Common Stock and Stockholders’ Equity”, for more information. The Company also granted SVB a security interest in
significantly all of the Company’s assets. The Mezzanine Term Loan has been used to fund the expansion of the Company’s
business. The Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement with SVB and the Subordinated Loan and Security
Agreement are collectively referred to as the “SVB Facilities”.
The Company incurred approximately $0.3 million of loan origination costs in connection with the SVB Facilities and
amortized approximately $24,000 and $21,000 during the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Effective with the purchase of AmeriDoc, the Company executed a Subordinated Promissory Note in the amount of
$3.5 million payable to the seller of AmeriDoc on April 30, 2015. The Subordinated Promissory Note carries interest at a rate of
10.00% annual interest and is subordinated to the SVB Facilities. In March 2015, the Company, the seller of AmeriDoc and SVB
executed an Amended and Restated Subordinated Promissory Note that extended the maturity of the Amended and Restated
Subordinated Promissory Note to April 30, 2017. In November 2015, the Company executed the Second Amended and Restated
Subordinated Promissory Note with a revised annual interest rate of 7.00% commencing on January 1, 2016 and extended the
maturity of the Second Amended and Restated Subordinated Promissory Note to April 30, 2018 with a seller put option effective
on April 30, 2017. The Company repaid $0.5 million of principal on this Second Amended and Restated Subordinated Promissory
Note during 2015.
The Company was in compliance with all debt covenants at March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.
Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following summarizes our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2016:

Total

Operating leases
Obligations under SVB Facilities and AmeriDoc Promissory Note
Interest associated with long-term debt
Total

$ 9,995
26,354
2,426
$ 38,775

Payment Due by Period
Less than
1 to 3
4 to 5
1 Year
Years
Years
(in thousands)

$ 1,684
1,250
1,934
$ 4,868

$ 2,160
25,000
492
$ 27,652

$ 1,850
104
0
$ 1,954

More than
5 Years

$ 4,301
—
—
$ 4,301

Our existing office and hosting co-location facilities lease agreements provide us with the option to renew and generally
provide for rental payments on a graduated basis. Our future operating lease obligations would change if we
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entered into additional operating lease agreements as we expand our operations and if we exercised the office and hosting colocation facilities lease options. The contractual commitment amounts in the table above are associated with agreements that are
enforceable and legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum services to be used, fixed,
minimum or variable price provisions and the approximate timing of the transaction. Obligations under contracts that we can
cancel without a significant penalty are not included in the table above. For abandoned facilities, the above contractual obligation
schedule does not reflect any realized or potential sublease revenue.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
During the periods presented, we did not have, nor do we currently have, any relationships with unconsolidated entities
or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have
been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.
We are therefore not exposed to the financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in those types of
relationships.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Ris k
Interest Rate Risk
We have floating rate debt with our Term Loan facility and Revolving Advance facility, and cash equivalents that are
subject to interest rate volatility, which is our principal market risk. A 25 basis point change in the weighted average interest rate
relating to the Term Loan facility and Revolving Advance facility as of March 31, 2016, which are subject to variable interest
rates based on the prime rate, would yield a change of approximately $25,000 in annual interest expense. We do not expect cash
flows to be affected to any significant degree by a sudden change in market interest rates.
Item 4. Controls and Procedure s
In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control
objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and
procedures.
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated, as of the
end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)). Based
on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
were ineffective at the reasonable assurance level as of March 31, 2016. This conclusion is due to the following material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting.
In connection with our 2015 and 2014 audits, management identified a material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting relating to the breadth of our internal accounting team. Specifically, we did not have a sufficient number of
accounting personnel to effectively design and operate proper internal controls over financial reporting. We are taking steps to
remediate this material weakness, which has included expanding our internal accounting team with additional qualified personnel.
In addition, we are in the process of documenting and assessing our internal controls over financial reporting. We anticipate that
we will remediate this material weakness during 2016.
No changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATIO N
Item 1. Legal Proceeding s
We are subject to legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of our business.
Teladoc is plaintiff in two lawsuits in the Texas courts against the Texas Medical Board (the ‘‘TMB’’). In the first suit,
Teladoc v. TMB and Leshikar, on December 31, 2014, the Austin Court of Appeals granted Teladoc’s request for summary
judgment, invalidating the TMB’s prior assertion that Teladoc’s doctors do not form ‘‘proper professional relationships’’ with
Teladoc’s members in the course of telehealth consultations such as would support the prescription of medications. The TMB has
filed a petition for review with the Texas Supreme Court to ask that Court if it will allow the TMB to appeal the Court of
Appeals’s decision. This petition is pending. In the second suit, Teladoc et al. v. TMB et al., the United States District Court for
the Western District of Texas, Austin Division, held a hearing on May 22, 2015 on Teladoc’s motion for preliminary injunction of
the rule amendments the TMB adopted on April 10, 2015 that seek to effect substantively identical restrictions as at issue in the
prior lawsuit in state court. On May 29, 2015, the court granted Teladoc’s request for a preliminary injunction of the
rule amendments, pending ultimate trial on the amendments’ validity. On July 30, 2015, the TMB filed a motion to dismiss the
suit, and the federal court denied this motion on December 14, 2015. On January 8, 2016, the TMB provided notice of its intent to
appeal the federal court’s denial of its motion to dismiss to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit, which appeal has not
yet been filed. On January 14, 2016, the federal court granted the parties’ joint motion to stay the trial case pending the
aforementioned appeal. Accordingly, no trial date has been set.
Business in the State of Texas accounted for approximately $3.9 million (or 14%), and $12.6 million (or 16%), of the
Company’s consolidated revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and during the year ended December 31, 2015,
respectively. If the TMB’s revisions go into effect as written and Teladoc is unable to adapt its business model in compliance with
the TMB rule, its ability to operate its business in the State of Texas could be materially adversely affected, which would have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.
On June 8, 2015, American Well Corporation filed a complaint against Teladoc in the United States District Court for
the District of Massachusetts alleging that certain of its operating platform’s technology infringes one of American Well’s
patents, which patent Teladoc is seeking to invalidate pursuant to a petition for inter partes review that Teladoc filed with the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office’s Patent Trial and Appeals Board in March 2015. On November 11, 2015, Teladoc filed a
motion to dismiss American Well’s complaint. This motion is pending before the court. Teladoc has investigated the claims
alleged in American Well’s complaint and believes that it has good defenses to the claims. However, were Teladoc ultimately not
to prevail in the lawsuit, its results of operations would be affected.
Item 1A. Risk Factor s
In addition to the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should carefully consider the
factors discussed in the “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” section in Part I, Item 2, of this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q.
Our business faces significant risks and uncertainties. Certain important factors may have a material adverse effect on
our business prospects, financial condition and results of operations, and you should carefully consider them. Accordingly, in
evaluating our business, we encourage you to consider the following discussion of risk factors, in its entirety, in addition to other
information contained in or incorporated by reference into this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our other public filings with
the SEC. Other events that we do not currently anticipate or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceed s
On June 30, 2015, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) declared effective our Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (File No. 333-204577), as amended, filed in connection with the initial public offering of our common stock.
Pursuant to the Registration Statement and to a 462(b) Registration Statement filed on June 30, 2015 (File No. 333-204577), we
registered the offer and sale of 9,487,500 shares of common stock with an aggregate offering price of approximately $163.5
million. On July 7, 2015 (“Closing Date”), we issued and sold 8,250,000 shares of our common stock at a price to the public of
$19.00 per share (the “Offering”). J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. acted as joint book-running
managers for the offering, and William Blair & Company, L.L.C., Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and SunTrust Robinson
Humphrey, Inc. acted as co-managers. On July 1, 2015, the
33

Table of Contents

underwriters exercised their option to purchase additional shares pursuant to the underwriting agreement (the “Over-Allotment
Option”). On July 7, 2015, we closed the Over-Allotment Option, and we sold 1,237,500 shares at a price to the public of $19.00
per share.
As a result of the Offering and the Over-Allotment Option, we received net proceeds of approximately $163.1 million in
the aggregate, which is comprised of gross proceeds of approximately $180.2 million, offset by underwriting discounts and
commissions of approximately $12.6 million and other offering expenses of approximately $4.5 million. No payments for such
expenses were made directly or indirectly to (i) any of our officers or directors or their associates, (ii) any persons owning 10% or
more of any class of our equity securities or (iii) any of our affiliates. The Offering and the Over-Allotment Option terminated
after all registered securities had been sold.
The net proceeds of approximately $163.1 million from our initial public offering have been invested in short-term
investment grade, interest-bearing corporate obligations. There has been no material change in the expected use of the net
proceeds from our initial public offering as described in our final prospectus, dated June 30, 2015, filed with the SEC pursuant to
Rule 424(b) relating to our Registration Statement on Form S-1.
Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8- K
A list of exhibits is set forth on the Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page of this Form 10-Q, and is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Signature s
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
TELADOC, INC.
Date: May 10, 2016

By:
Name:
Title:

Date: May 10, 2016

By:
Name:
Title:
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/s/ JASON GOREVIC
Jason Gorevic
President and Chief Executive Officer
/s/ MARK HIRSCHHORN
Mark Hirschhorn
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibi t
Index
Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Form

Incorporated by Reference
Filing
File No.
Exhibit
Date

3.1

Fifth Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of Teladoc, Inc.

8-K

001-37477

3.1

7/07/15

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Teladoc, Inc.

8-K

001-37477

3.2

7/07/15

4.1

Specimen stock certificate evidencing shares of the
common stock.

S-1/A

333-204577

4.5

6/24/15

10.1

Form of Indemnification Agreement.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.7

6/18/15

10.2

Teladoc, Inc. 2015 Incentive Award Plan.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.10

6/18/15

10.3

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Teladoc, Inc. 2015 Incentive Award Plan.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.11

6/18/15

10.4

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the
Teladoc, Inc. 2015 Incentive Award Plan.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.12

6/18/15

10.5

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the
Teladoc, Inc. 2015 Incentive Award Plan.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.13

6/18/15

10.6

Teladoc, Inc. 2015 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.14

6/18/15

10.7

Teladoc, Inc. Non-Employee Director Compensation
Program.

10-Q

001-37477

10.7

8/12/15

10.8

Amended and Restated Executive Employment
Agreement, dated June 16, 2015, by and between
Teladoc, Inc. and Jason Gorevic.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.19

6/18/15

10.9

Amended and Restated Executive Employment
Agreement, dated June 16, 2015, by and between
Teladoc, Inc. and Mark Hirschhorn.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.20

6/18/15

10.10

Amended and Restated Executive Employment
Agreement, dated June 16, 2015, by and between
Teladoc, Inc. and Michael King.

S-1/A

333-204577

10.21

6/18/15

21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

S-1/A

31.1

Chief Executive Officer—Certification pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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31.2

Chief Financial Officer—Certification pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*

32.1

Chief Executive Officer—Certification pursuant to
Rule13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002.

**

32.2

Chief Financial Officer—Certification pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002.

**

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document.

*

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

*

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.

*

101.DEF

XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

*

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document.

*

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.

*

* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
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Exhibit 31.1

Exhibit 31.1
Certification
I, Jason Gorevic, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Teladoc, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: May 10, 2016
/s/ JASON GOREVIC
Jason Gorevic
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2

Exhibit 31.2
Certification
I, Mark Hirschhorn, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Teladoc, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: May 10, 2016
/s/ MARK HIRSCHHORN
Mark Hirschhorn
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Teladoc, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2016 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jason Gorevic, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, to my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: May 10, 2016
/s/ JASON GOREVIC
Jason Gorevic
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Teladoc, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2016 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mark Hirschhorn, Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, to my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: May 10, 2016
/s/ MARK HIRSCHHORN
Mark Hirschhorn
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

